AFFIDAVIT FOR SEARCH WARRANTS

I, John L. Ferreira, being first duly sworn, depose and say:
INTRODUCTION

1. I am a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of
Investigation ("FBI").and have been so employed since September
1978. For the past ten years, I have been assigned to the Eugéne
Resident Agency of the "FBI" working numerous federal violations
to include domestic terrorism matters, more specifically arson,
and destruction of property claimed by the Animal Liberation
Front (ALF) and the Earth Liberation Front (ELF).

2. The information set forth in this affidavit includes
facts gathered by myself, and information provided to me by other
federal and state law enforcement officers. Unless I indicate
otherwise, statements that I attribute to various persons are set
forth in substance only.

3. This affidavit is being submitted for the purpose of
obtaining four separate search warrants and a seizure warrant in
connection with the continuing investigation of a number of
arsons committed in the Northwest by persons associated with the
ALF/ELF movement. Three of these arsons are more specifically
described in paragraph 4 below. Because this affidavit is
presented solely to establish the probable cause necessary to

justify the issuance of these warrants, it does not necessarily
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include all of the information known to me about the matters
presented in the affidavit. Authority is being sought to search
the following premises: the residences of Stanislas Meyerhoff,
414 Four Seasons Drive, Charlottesville, Virginia; Kevin Tubbs,
520 South 71st Street, Springfield, Oregon; Daniel McGowan, 510
East 13th Street, Apartment 14, New York, New York; and the
residence and business of William C. Rodgers, 109 N-A McCormick
Street, Prescott, Arizona. The items for which affiant and
others under his direction will be searching include: certain
evidence of association among co-conspirators, including address
and/or telephone books, personal diaries and photographs;
evidence of communication among co-conspirators, including
correspondence, voice mail, computer e-mail and web-site
messages; evidence of false identification used or possessed by
co-conspirators, including identifications of Ronald Calloway,
Dylan Kay, and Jamie Moran; evidence of association of co-
conspirators with ALF/ELF, including publications or communiques
by or related to ALF/ELF, lists of potential victims, and manuals
on how to construct incendiary devices, both written and on
computers; evidence of financial and telephone records, including
credit card statements, receipts, checks, bank statements, and
telephone bills; and two way radios, including hand-held radios
or walkie talkies, person to person communicators, scanners and

documents or lists of scanner codes. Additionally, authority is
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being sought to seize a 1989 blue/silver Toyota pickup truck
registered to Rodgers. Your affiant belie§es these items
constitute evidence i?h or are relevant to, the continuing
investigation of a.number of Northwest arsons, including those
specifically described in paragraph 4 below and committed in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 844(i), Title
18, United States Codé Section 844{n), Title 18, United States
Code Section 924 (c), and Title 18, United States Code, Section
371.

4. A cooperating witness (CW) who has proven very credible,
identified an ALF/ELF cell which was responsible for several
ALF/ELF claimed arsons to include the arson at the Animal and
Plant and Health Inspection Services Facility (APHIS) in Olympia,
Washington on June 21, 1998, the arson at Superior Lumber Company
in Glendale, Oregon on January 2, 2001, and the arson at
Jefferson Poplar Farm, 79114 Collins Road, Clatskanie, Oregon on
May 21, 2001. The CW participated in the arsons of the AHPHIS
Facility and the Superior Lumber Company Office. The CW
participated in the planning (“dry run”) of the arsons of the
buildings at Jefferson Poplar Farm. The CW provided details of
the arsons to include the incendiary devices used, the placement
of the devices, and the description of the targeted area, most of
which matched the fire cause investigation conducted by the

Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) and other State
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resided in Olympia, Washington, and together commit the
arson of the APHIS Facility.

b. On the way to Olympia, Washington, the CW, Tubbs and
Overaker stopped in Tacoma, Washington to shoplift
items for their pre-planned arson. Overaker was
arrested for shoplifting sponges and a mag light at
Home Base, &acoma, Washington. Because Overaker was
arrested, the CW and Tubbs decided to contact Dibee to
call off the two arsons. The CW and Tubbs were unable
to contact Dibee. 1In the meantime, the CW and Tubbs
were having trouble with their van, but were able to
temporarily fix it and meet Rodgers. Overaker, who was
released from jail, was with Rodgers. They decided to
commit the arson of the APHIS Facility since they were
unable to contact Dibee to call off the other planned
arson. Overaker was told to find an alibi as she was
not permitted to participate in the arson because of
her earlier arrest.

C. Because they were unable to meet Dibee who was to
supply the timers for the incendiary devices, Rodgers
purchased lighter sticks (fire starters) at a store in
Olympia, Washington that were to be used in lighting
the fuel. With Tubbs driving, the CW, Tubbs and

Rodgers traveled to Olympia, Washington in Rodgers's
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truck. The CW and Rodgers set the incendiary devices
(buckets of fuel and the lighter’sticks) at three
locations on the outside of the APHIS Facility, and
the £wo of them then set the fire at the three
locations.

d. After setting the fire, the CW, Tubbs and Rodgers drove
to the Federal Way, Washington area where Tubbs had’
parked his van. Overaker was waiting for them in the
area where the van was parked. Tubbs and Rodgers drove
in Rodgers' truck to Olympia, Washington where Tubbs
dropped Rodgers at his then residence. Tubbs used
Rodgers' truck and drove to Springfield, Oregon.

e. The CW and Overaker stayed with the van. The CW tried
to fix the van, but failed. The CW left the van at an
automotive business, and the CW and Overaker then
hitch-hiked back to Eugene, Oregon.

6. On December 10, 2004, I placed a body recorder on the CW
who had agreed to record a conversation with Tubbs. The CW and
Tubbs talked about Joséphine Sunshine Overaker being arrested for
shoplifting just prior to the arson at the APHIS Facility in
Olympia, Washington.

7. Independent investigation determined that Overaker was
arrested on June 20, 1998, for shoplifting in Tacoma, Washington.

The arson at the APHIS Facility, which was claimed by the ALF,
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occurred on June 21, 1998. Also, there was a second arson at the
Animal Damage Control Facility in Olympia,‘Washington, which also
occurred on Jdﬁe 21, 1998, shortly.after the arson at the APHIS
Facility. | |

8. Investigation identified the van' registered tb Ronald
Calloway being abandoned at Eagle Tire and Automotive, 1515 South
344th Street, FederalIWay, Washington on June 22, 1998 (the day
after the arson at the APHIS Facility).

9. On June 16, 2005, I placed a body recorder on the CW who
had agreed to record a conversation with Tubbs. The CW asked
Tubbs about his abandoned van. Tubbs replied that "someone
signed the permission slip to have it, like salvaged or
whatever.”

10. On November 18, 2005, I placed a body recorder on the
CW who had agreed to record another conversation with Tubbs.
Tubbs and the CW discussed the arson at the APHIS Facility.

Tubbs talked about a "friend” (Dibee) who failed to show up with
the "shot glasses or can opener" (timing devices), but left the
area because the CW, Tubbs, Rodgers, and Overaker were late
getting to the staging area.

11. The CW's account of how the arson took place and the
method of ignition was also consistent with the ATF fire
investigation. Fire investigators from ATF determined that at

the APHIS Facility, there were three independent areas of origin
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and that accélerants were used. An ATF report regarding the
arson state;: "Ignition is more probably than not by hand held
flame." Fire investigators at the scene collected melted white
plastic and wire buckét handles which were consistent with the
CW's statement fhat they used white plastic buckets. The ATF
laboratory also identified the "remains of a wood/wax based fire
starter”. This is consistent with the information provided by -
the CW that Rodgers used Duraflame Firestart Barbeque lighters to

light some of the buckets of fuel.

Superior Lumber Companv arson

12. 1In a debriefing of the CW during the period September
21 through 23, 2004, the CW provided the following information
regarding the arson at the Superior Lumber Company office in
Glendale, Oregon on January 2, 2001: The CW, Tubbs, Stanislas
Meyerhoff, Daniel McGowan, and McGowan's ex-girlfriend, Suzanne
N. Savoie, also known as “India,” drove to Glendale, Oregon to
commit the arson of the Superior Lumber Company office. McGowan
and Savoie were the lookouts or watchdogs. Tubbs was the driver
of the van the CW called "Betty." The CW and Meyerhoff scouted
the office area of Superior Lumber Company. Tubbs drove the van
around to the back parking area to deliver the incendiary
devices. The CW and Meyerhoff set the incendiary devices outside

of the Superior Lumber Company office building, and left the area

in the van.
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